
  

 

City and County of Swansea 
 
Notice of Meeting 
 
You are invited to attend a Meeting of the 

 

Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee 
 

At: 
 

Remotely via Microsoft Teams 
 

On: 
 

Wednesday, 13 December 2023 

Time: 
 

4.00 pm 

Chair: Councillor Mike Durke 
 

Membership: 
Councillors: F M Gordon, B Hopkins, Y V Jardine, L R Jones, S Joy, S Pritchard and 
T M White 
 
Watch Online: http://tiny.cc/ES1312 
 
 

Agenda 
Page No. 

1   Apologies for Absence.  
 
2   Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests.  

 www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests  
 

 

3   Minutes. 1 - 3 
 To approve & sign the Minutes of the previous meeting(s) as a correct 

record. 
 

 
4   Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places. 4 - 10 
 
5   Work Plan 11 
 
 

Next Meeting: Wednesday, 24 January 2024 at 4.00 pm 
 

 

 
Huw Evans 
Head of Democratic Services  
Wednesday, 6 December 2023 

Contact: Democratic Services - (01792) 636923 
 
 

http://tiny.cc/ES1312
http://www.swansea.gov.uk/disclosuresofinterests


 
 

 

City and County of Swansea 
 

Minutes of the Education & Skills Service 
Transformation Committee 

 
Multi-Location Meeting - Gloucester Room, Guildhall / MS 

Teams  

Wednesday, 8 November 2023 at 4.00 pm 

 
Present: Councillor M Durke (Chair) Presided 

 
Councillor(s) Councillor(s) Councillor(s) 
F M Gordon B Hopkins L R Jones 
S Joy Y V Jardine T M White 
 
Officer(s)  
Gareth Borsden Democratic Services Officer 
Sarah Hughes Team Manager for Education Strategy 
Helen Morgan-Rees Director of Education 
Melissa Perry Solicitor 
Kelly Small Head of Education Planning & Resources Service 
 
Also present  
Councillor R V Smith, Cabinet Member for Education and Learning 
 
Apologies for Absence 
Councillor(s): S Pritchard 

 

 
18 Disclosures of Personal & Prejudicial Interests. 

 
In accordance with the Code of Conduct adopted by the City & County of Swansea, 
no interests were declared. 
 

19 Minutes. 
 
Resolved that the Minutes of the Education and Skills Service Transformation 
Committee held on 27 September be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

20 Right Schools in Right Places. 
 
The Cabinet Member for Education and Skills introduced the report and stated that 
the report provided an opportunity for the beginning of a discussion and a review of 
the whole school estate across the authority. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee (08.11.2023) 
Cont’d 

 

He indicated that the proposed new School Provision Plan (SPP) could provide an 
opportunity to develop and deliver the principles for delivering educational services 
going forward for many years across the City. 
 
The Director of Education stated that proposed plan will support decision making for 
school buildings and estates for many years going forward and will link in with the 
transformation agenda and demographic changes that are already taking place 
across the city. 
 
She indicated that the plan will link in well with the Sustainable Communities for 
Learning (SCfL)and Strategic Outline Programme (SOP) initiatives that have already 
been developed. 
 
The Head of Planning & Resources then took the committee through the circulated 
report and verbally outlined and updated members on the proposals contained in the 
proposed SPP including the following areas: 

 Background to the development of the plan which dovetails and links with 
other initiatives like SCfL, SOP etc; 

 Changes and upgrades to school buildings including capital works and 
maintenance programme; 

 Context of the plan which will become an actual document that can be used, 
looked at and referred to by all involved in the education community; 

 SPP is suggested to run for a 9 year period to link in with the SCfL, and SOP 
which are on similar timescales; 

 Input of the Quality in Education (QEd) programme board which meets 
monthly to consider school estate issues; 

 Engagement with schools and headteacher representatives will also be 
sought before the plan would be finalised; 

 Context and background to the development of the plan, including 
demographic changes, falling birth rate in Swansea, high inward migration, 
changing working patterns, audit commission guidance on school numbers, 
Welsh medium provision, faith schools, ALN provision and pupils taught at 
home; 

 Discussions have taken place with the universities and health board to 
attempt to plan for the rise in inward migrati; 

 Potential impact of strategic housing sites and developments contained within 
the LDP; 

 Parental choice impact, school admission numbers and catchment areas; 

 Potential trigger point in the new plan for a school review if pupil numbers 
change by plus/minus 10% over a two year period; 

 School building surveys undertaken each year – buildings split into 4 
categories A, B C or D, and these could be recorded in the SPP for each 
school along with information on school building ages; 

 Display Energy Certificates (DEC) ratings for each school are a good 
indication of energy efficiency and this data could also be included in the SPP; 

 Accessibility to school, including transport links and availability and travel 
times for children, the SPP could suggest a limit for travelling for both primary 
and secondary sectors; 

Page 2



Minutes of the Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee (08.11.2023) 
Cont’d 

 

 Committee members had received information and discussed the 
complexities and issues around school transport provision at a recent 
workshop; 

 Vocational provision and links with other providers; 

 Aim is to bring a draft version of the plan to the January meeting of this 
committee for members to discuss. 

 
Members discussed the report and presentation and asked questions of the Officers 
and Cabinet Member who responded accordingly.  The key areas arising from 
discussions included:  

 Travel time issues for pupils; 

 Need to include all school buildings in plan, not just main buildings; 

 Audit commission guidance on 6th form numbers and sustainability of 
provision going forward; 

 High turnover of pupils, particularly in city centre and combination of high 
numbers of new pupils, pupil turnover and deprivation issues can impact on 
schools; 

 Size of amenity space in schools for play/sports etc compared to actual 
building size could be included in SPP; 

 Huge rise in cost of building materials and subsequent rise in maintenance 
costs for schools. 

 
The Chair thanked the Head of Education Planning and Resources for her 
informative report. 
 

21 Work Plan 2023-2024. 
 
The Chair outlined the workplan for the committee for the remainder of 2023/2024. 
 
He proposed that the next meeting in December be held online only via Teams. 
Members of the committee supported the proposal. 
 
 
 
 
The meeting ended at 4.47 pm 
 
 

Chair 
 

Page 3



 
 

Report of the Director of Education   
 

Education & Skills Service Transformation Committee 
13 December 2023 

 

Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places  
 

Purpose: The report presents information regarding the Supporting 
Sufficient Specialist Places programme in relation to the 
current position and future plans.  

 
Report Author: Kate Phillips   
 
Finance Officer: Aimee Dyer 
 
Legal Officer: Stephanie Williams 
 
Access to Services  
Officer: Rhian Millar 
 

For Information 
 
1. Background 
 
1.1 The purpose of Service Transformation Committees is to contribute to 

the ongoing development of the Council’s agreed transformation 
activities (specifically in relation to the council’s corporate plan, policy 
commitments, Corporate Transformation Plan, and Medium-Term 
Financial Plan) for consideration and adoption by Cabinet Members, 
Cabinet and/or Council as appropriate. 
 

1.2 At the meeting held on 14 June 2023, it was agreed that Supporting 
Sufficient Specialist Places would be a key area for consideration by 
the Education and Skills Service Transformation Committee. 
 

1.3 This report will provide an update on progress following the Education 
and Skills Service Transformation Committee meeting on 27 
September 2023 and will outline how current data trends have been 
considered in order to inform the plans.  

  

Page 4

Agenda Item 4



 
2. Progress since last Education and Skills Service Transformation 

Committee 
 
2.1 Three main areas of progress will be covered in this report. They are 

the data collation; change team progress and an update on pilot 
projects.  

 
2.2. A comprehensive data collation activity has taken place to identify 

current and predicted trends. The data was analysed and considered in 
line with identified current risks and recent publications to provide an 
overview of the current position and direction of travel. An overview of 
these findings will be provided in this report.   

 
2.3 Change Team met for an “away day” during the Autum Term to ensure 

dedicated and comprehensive consideration the collated data and 
consider the proposed model. The Change Team also considered 
funding arrangements to implement the proposed model and agreed 
next steps. These proposed steps will also be outlined in this report 
and the committee’s views in relation to them would be welcomed.   

 
2.4 The transport pilot project has concluded and the Dylan Thomas 

Cluster Enhanced Project has moved into the next phase and updates 
on both will be provided in this report.   

  
3. Data collation and research 
 
3.1 A range of data was collated from a number of different sources which 

included: 
 

 Local Health Board (Child and Adolescent Mental Health 
ServiceS, Speech and Language Therapists; 
Neurodevelopmental Pathways).  

 detailed data analysis from an identified cluster of schools 
relating to all learners with ALN within that cluster 

 data from the Regional Partnership Board, particularly in relation 
to the regional Autism strategy.  

 data from early years panels and providers  

 data relating to looked after children  

 data on the Additional Learning Needs and Inclusion Team 
performance.  
 

3.2 This data has been analysed and key themes identified. The data 
analysis identified an increasing trajectory for all different areas of 
need. It also identified that our current model struggles to manage 
current numbers and will need amending to accommodate future 
projected levels of demand. This makes a strong case for change in 
relation to the Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places programme.  

 
Some of the key considerations of the data analysis are as follows: 

Page 5



 
3.3 While there are long waiting lists in health the children on those lists 

are attending school irrespective of a clinical diagnosis and require 
specialist support.  

 
3.4 The number of children pre school with identified additional learning 

needs is increasing year on year. This gives us a good prediction for 
future numbers and emphasises the need to make changes now in 
preparation.  

 
3.5 The data collected indicated that all schools will need to meet a range 

of additional learning needs and that an inclusive approach to all 
learners will be critical. While we know there are increasing numbers of 
children and young people with Autism other areas of need are also 
growing and so we need to ensure our model can respond to all needs.  

 
3.6 There are increasing pressures on central services and schools with 

increasing needs and a reducing budgets position.  
 
3.7 As part of the research into emerging trends we also considered recent 

publications including Estyn and NEAL documents.  
 
3.8 The Estyn thematic report: 
 

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2023-
09/The%20new%20additional%20learning%20needs%20system_0.pdf 

 
Made a key recommendation for local authorities to: 

 
Continue to quality assure and review practice and additional learning 
provision to ensure funding and professional learning supports roll out 
effectively for: 
 

 Person centred practices 

 Individual development plans 

 Welsh-medium services, resources and provision 

 
It is considered that the Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 
programme will help achieve this. 

 
3.9 The National Academy for Education Leadership NAEL report: 
 

https://nael.cymru/en/library/what-is-the-role-of-educational-leadership-
in-delivering-the-additional-learning-needs-reform-in-wales 

 
Made a series of observations around the challenges schools and 
school leaders face in relation to implementing and embedding ALNET. 
The Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places programme should help to 
support school leaders with some of those challenges although it is 

Page 6

https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2023-09/The%20new%20additional%20learning%20needs%20system_0.pdf
https://www.estyn.gov.wales/system/files/2023-09/The%20new%20additional%20learning%20needs%20system_0.pdf
https://nael.cymru/en/library/what-is-the-role-of-educational-leadership-in-delivering-the-additional-learning-needs-reform-in-wales
https://nael.cymru/en/library/what-is-the-role-of-educational-leadership-in-delivering-the-additional-learning-needs-reform-in-wales


recognised that the broader solution sits beyond the programme and 
requires national funding decisions.  

 
3.10 It is considered that the Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 

programme will support the local authority in meeting the needs of 
learners both now and in the future as demonstrated by the data 
collation and analysis.  

 
3.11 It is also considered that the programme will help us to meet our 

obligations in relation to the Estyn recommendations however, as noted 
in the NEAL report, there are systematic requirements beyond the 
control of Swansea Council in terms of the requirements of the 
Additional Learning Needs and Educational Tribunal Act (2018) and the 
redesign of demand led services will be crucial to make the most of 
available resources 

 
3.12 Our data analysis and research tells us that need is increasing while 

resource is decreasing and this gives us an even greater case for 
change in order to work as creatively as possible. 

 
4. Change Team progress 
 
4.1 The Change Team met regularly during the Autumn Term to consider 

how best to take forward the Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 
programme.  

 
4.2 The team comprises the Director of Education, Head of Vulnerable 

Learners Service, Head of Achievement and Partnership Service, Head 
of Planning and Resources, ALN officers and project officers. 

 
4.3 The Change Team agreed the new model and have identified the 

funding model for the review of the specialist teaching facilities.  
 
4.4 Further consideration needs to be given to funding the cluster 

enhanced provision element of the model however, this element of the 
model is currently untested and the pilot programme in the Dylan 
Thomas cluster will be important. Analysis of the pilot programme will 
support further discussions on how (and if) to take this forward and 
make the case for funding.  

 
4.5 A series of internal communication meetings will take place during the 

spring term as agreed by the Change Team. This will provide updates 
to headteachers, specifically those whose schools are proposed to 
have new or amended provision. 

 
4.6 A report will be prepared for Swansea Council Cabinet to seek 

permission to consult on the new model of specialist teaching facilities.  
 
  

Page 7



5. Pilot Projects 
 
5.1 To test the thinking which has emerged from the co-construction phase 

two pilot projects were undertaken.  
 
5.2 The first pilot was a mini bus transport pilot project as detailed in 

previous service transformation committee meetings. This pilot project 
concluded shortly after the last committee meeting with a full evaluation 
undertaken.  

 
5.3 The evaluation identified the project as a total success with both 

learners, families and schools welcoming the change from single taxi 
transport to school staffed mini bus transport.  

 
5.4 A few of the key indicators of success where in relation to learner 

wellbeing and readiness to learn. Families also welcomed the link 
between home and school. Financial savings were also achieved.  

 
5.5 The two schools involved in the pilot, Clwyd Primary School and Ysgol 

Pen y Bryn have now adopted the transport arrangements on a 
permanent basis.  

 
5.6 Grant funding has been used to purchase two additional mini buses to 

support the project’s sustainability. 
 
5.7 A project team was established and a comprehensive suite of 

documentation has be produced to support roll out.  
 
5.8 Agreement was sought and given to roll out the project more widely 

however, pressures in the Home to School Transport Team have 
prevented this from happening. While everything is in place to take this 
highly successful initiative forward we are now waiting for the Home to 
School Transport Team so secure the additional resources they need 
to undertake their element of the process.  

 
5.9 Once the project is able to roll out fully there will likely be significant 

savings for the council but more importantly, improved learner 
experience.  

 
5.10 The Dylan Thomas Cluster Enhanced Provision Project is progressing 

well with staff now appointed.  
 
5.11 It is hoped that the provision will open in January 2023 with access for 

children within the cluster.  
 
5.12 The pilot is being grant funded and analysis will be critical to assess 

whether or not all, or part, of the elements should be taken forward as 
a longer term arrangement. This in turn will guide funding 
considerations.  

 

Page 8



6. Next Steps 
 
6.1 The next key step and focus of the work is the submission of a report to 

Cabinet seeking permission to consult on the new model.  
 
6.2 It will also be necessary to meet with all headteachers at schools who 

will play a key role in specialist teaching facility provision. This will take 
place during the spring term  

 
6.3 It would be helpful to bring a draft cabinet report and accompanying 

communications to the next meeting of the Skills Transformation 
Committee where Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places is on the 
agenda. 

 
7. Integrated Assessment Implications 
 
7.1 The Council is subject to the Equality Act (Public Sector Equality Duty 

and the socio-economic duty), the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 and the Welsh Language (Wales) Measure, and 
must in the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to: 

 

 Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation 
and other conduct prohibited by the Acts. 

 Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 
protected characteristic and those who do not. 

 Foster good relations between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

 Deliver better outcomes for those people who experience socio-
economic disadvantage. 

 Consider opportunities for people to use the Welsh language. 

 Treat the Welsh language no less favourably than English. 

 Ensure that the needs of the present are met without 
compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own 
needs. 

 
7.1.1 The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 mandates that 

public bodies in Wales must carry out sustainable development. 
Sustainable development means the process of improving the 
economic, social, environmental and cultural well-being of Wales by 
taking action, in accordance with the sustainable development 
principle, aimed at achieving the ‘well-being goals’. 

 

7.1.2 Our Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) process ensures we have paid 
due regard to the above. It also takes into account other key issues 
and priorities, such as poverty and social exclusion, community 
cohesion, carers, the United Nations Convention on the Rights of the 
Child (UNCRC) and Welsh language. 

 
7.1.3 This report is for information only.  Any initiatives developed following 

this review will be subject to the IIA process as required. 

Page 9



 
8. Legal Implications 
 
8.1 There are no specific legal implications associated with this report.   
 
9. Financial Implications 
 
9.1 There are no financial implications associated with this report.    
 
 
 
 
Background papers: None 
 
Appendices:  None 

Page 10



 
Education & Skills STC - Work Plan 2023-2024 

Meeting Date Agenda Items 

14 June 2023 
 

Workplan Discussion 

26 July 2023 
 

 Right Schools in Right Places 
   

27 September 2023 
 

Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 

8 November 2023 
 

Right Schools in Right Places 

13 December 2023 
 

Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 

24 January 2024 
 

Right Schools in Right Places 

6 March 2024 
 

Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places 

17 April 2024 
 

End of Year Report 

 
 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 5


	Agenda
	3 Minutes.
	4 Supporting Sufficient Specialist Places.
	5 Work Plan

